Rt Hon Lord Hunt of Kings Heath, Minister of State (Minister for Energy Security and Net Zero).

Cc: Sir Geoffrey Clifton-Brown, Chair Public Accounts Committee (PAC) 
Cc: Secretariat, PAC.

Cc: Sarah Jones, MP, Minister of State (Minister for Industry).

Cc: Comptroller and Auditor General.

Cc. Secretariat, ESNZ Committee.

Dear Lord Hunt,
RAB Funding: your ref MCB2024/16299

1.) Thank you for your letter of 5th December, in response to our letter of 14th October about our concerns on RAB nuclear funding. Unfortunately, the information in your letter has not allayed our concerns: but has actually somewhat increased them. Without wishing to start a protracted correspondence, we will as briefly as possible set out why, particularly for the benefit of copy recipients.

2.) Can we start with what should be some common ground: namely, that the subsidies involved in the proposed scheme for funding Sizewell C, and paid for by electricity charge payers, will amount to tens of billions of pounds. This should be common ground, because it is information which is contained in the Subsidy Advice Unit Report of June 2024, (in particular paragraphs 1.14 and 1.15), although the exact amounts have been redacted in the published version of that report. This is the background against which the comments in the rest of this letter should be judged. 
3.) Against this context, despite your arguments to the contrary we stand by our view that the Permanent Secretary’s evidence to the PAC, which we quoted in our original letter, unduly downplays the overall significance for consumers of funding the RAB subsidy.
4.) Leaving aside matters of wording and emphasis, we now turn to the essential feature of nuclear RAB which differentiates it from previous applications of RAB in, say, utilities. That is, the extremely long construction periods for new nuclear plants, during which consumers will be paying RAB charges against the putative prospect of future returns. 
5.) To be able to proceed, RAB will need to be better value for money than an alternative approach. But because of the long construction periods for nuclear projects, there are technical reasons why any alternative approach which appears to be worse value for money than RAB is likely to involve such high charges during the production period that it may well not be a feasible approach anyway. (We will not go into these technical reasons here, but the lead signatory below would be happy to provide a technical note if you wish). Certainly, the first question which should be asked about any scheme which is put forward as an alternative to justify RAB is: what are the long run charges implicit in this scheme? And, if these charges are very high, is this scheme a feasible alternative in the first place?
6.) This is where some of the new information in your letter gives real concern. In particular, you indicate that DESNZ will no longer be proceeding with the method proposed by the National Infrastructure Commission for assessing value for money for RAB nuclear projects. But the NIC methodology, if fully implemented, would have revealed precisely the kind of information needed to assess whether the alternatives against which RAB was being judged were feasible. 
7.) You do indicate that the value for money assessment would be done using the Green Book methodology. However, the results of that approach are commonly only presented in terms of differences of net present values: and give no indication of the actual charge levels which would be in prospect in either the RAB or alternative schemes: they therefore give no indication whether the alternative is actually feasible, or is just an infeasible straw man, set up to be knocked down. (As an example of what we mean, could we refer you to the cost justification for RAB which you yourself refer to in footnote 7 to your letter.) That is why the decision not to follow the NIC approach gives us real concern.
8.) If it is the case that RAB can only be justified as being value for money against alternatives which are not really feasible, then that calls into question the nature of the RAB charges themselves. In these circumstances, paying RAB charges cannot be regarded as an economically rational decision for consumers: but rather as a compulsory levy imposed on consumers by the Government, to provide funding for the loan charges on a piece of infrastructure which is regarded by the Government as being in the broader public interest. 
9.) After contracts are signed, the Office for National Statistics will be applying standard internationally recognised guidance when they come to do their independent national accounts classification of the RAB nuclear scheme. In terms of that guidance it seems clear that nuclear RAB charges will satisfy the conditions of a compulsory, unrequited levy: which would mean being classified as a tax. (The rules ONS will apply in this part of their assessment are set out, for example, in the ONS guidance note “Taxes and fees for sales of service: how they differ and why it is important”.)
10.) If nuclear RAB charges are classified by ONS as a tax, then that would imply that the costs of Sizewell C would have to come on to the Government’s books: whereas presumably one of the main reasons the Government is going down the RAB route is in the hope of levering in private finance and keeping the capital expenditure off book. There is therefore a potential grave problem here, if the special characteristics of RAB finance in the presence of long construction periods leads to an eventual on book classification by ONS.

11.) The worst of all possible worlds would be if the Government undertook contractual commitments to a RAB financed nuclear deal, and then was surprised by a later on book classification.

12.) We hope we have said just enough to indicate why the concerns raised in our original letter to the Secretary of State have not been allayed: and why it appears essential that the kind of modelling work and analysis suggested in that letter should be carried out. In addition, it appears very important that the Government should seek a provisional classification from ONS of what the public expenditure status of a Nuclear RAB scheme is likely to be, before contractual commitments are made on any such scheme.

This is being copied to the other copy recipients of our original letter.
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